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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Church of the Ascension is located on the southwest corner of High and Broadway
in Mt. Sterling, Kentucky. The structure is situated just off the courthouse square
on the northwest fringe of the commercial section. Further north and west of the
church is a late nineteenth century residential area. Mt. Sterling, with a
population of approximately 5,000 is the seat of government for Montgomery County
which lies northeast of the central Bluegrass region of Kentucky.

Designed by Frank Fitch in 1878, the white, board and batten, Gothic Revival structure
(see photo 1), embodies a partial cruciform plan in that the south transept is
lacking. The absence of the transept is likely due to the existence of a structure

on the adjoining lot south of the church at the time of construction. The church

now owns this south lot, and since 1953, has maintained a prayer garden on that
site.

The building's gabled, east facade contains a tripartite arrangement composed of
three cinquefoil arch windows united under a wooden, pointed arch hood mold. Above
this in the gable peak is a triangle-in-trefoil opening, and a simple Latin cross
adorns the shingled roof. Seven bays deep, the side walls of the structure are
pierced by narrow cinquefoil arch, stained glass windows over which are wooden

hood molds (see photo 2). Two-tiered buttresses are interspersed between the
windows and are located at the corners of the building. Small, triangular,
dormer-like windows corresponding to each bay project from the steeply pitched
roof. The trim on these windows resembles a combination of the cinquefoil arch

and a modified Latin cross. At the west end of the church is a polygonal apse with

a gabled roof terminating in a conical form (see photo 3). Windows_in the apse
are identical to those in the main body of the church, and a triangle-in-trefoil

opening pierces the west gable above the apse.

Access to the church is on the north side with one entrance at the east end of the
nave and another in the transept, Both are pointed arch openings with wooden

hood molds and are contained within small, gahled projections lit by slender
trefoil arch windows. Stairs on the south side in the prayer garden were built in
the 1950s to reach the recently excavated basement under the sanctuary.

On the interior, the five-foot wainscot is of chestnut with walls above of board and
batten construction. The trusses form a series of pointed arches which span the
nave and terminate in corbels on the side walls (see photos 4 and 5). The ceiling
is constructed of beaded boards. Electric lanterns suspended above the center aisle
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Church of the Ascension, built in 1878, is a rare example of board and batten,
Gothic style church architecture in this region of Kentucky. As such, the structure
is significant in its references to the nineteenth century Ecclesiological

Movement and to the work of American landscape architect, Andrew Jackson Downing.

The church was designed by Frank Fitch who had come to Mt. Sterling just a few

years earlier from Connecticut. With but two exceptions, both apparently unavoidable
due to the church's location, his Gothic design adhered to what was considered the
proper style for Anglican churches as espoused by the Ecclesiological Movement in
England. The church was obviously intended to embody a cruciform plan. The absence
of the south transept would appear to be due to the fact that another building
occupied the lot south of the church. The basic plan of an east-west nave with the
altar located at the east end was reversed, again it would seem as a result of the
shape and size of the lot. The use of board and batten construction is a direct
reference to the architectural ideology of A, J. Downing.

The Church of the Ascension was organized as a parish in 1858 and admitted to the
Episcopal Diocese of Kentucky in the same year. The present church structure is

the second to occupy the site, the first being a brick building already on the lot
acquired by the parish sometime between 1858 and 1860. During the Civil War,

Mt. Sterling served as a Union garrison, and the church was used as a combination

of camp, hospital, and post office by Federal troops from 1862-66. As a result,

the building was heavily damaged and its furniture and pews burned for firewood. When
the parish finally regained possession of the structure, over $1,000 had to be
spent in repairs (Swinford and Lee, p. 235),

During the war years the population of Mt. Sterling, and subsequently the size of the
parish, dropped. However, in the following years with the influx of Englishmen and
businessmen from the East associated with the building of the Chesapeake and Ohio
Railroad and the coal and timber industries in the eastern mountains, the population
grew and the need arose for a larger church building. The present structure was begun
in 1878 and consecrated in 1882,
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now light the interior; however, the original gaslight fixtures remain along the
side walls. The walnut choir rail and pews were carved by Fred Vischer, a
native of Germany. The ends of the pews reveal raised cinquefoil arch panels
containing a Latin cross and a fleur-de-lis finial completes the composition.

The nominated property consists of a rectangular area (110' x 85") comprising
the church and the prayer garden. The prayer garden, enclosed on three sides
by brick walls, is attractively landscaped with brick walks, trees, and shrubs.
This sheltered, tranquil setting relates both spatially and spiritually to the
church structure.
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the sidewalk which then connects with the brick wall, turning east 110’
following the brick wall (property line), turning north 85' along the
west side of Broadway to the point of origin.



